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COMPLAINT FOR CIVIL PENALTIES
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Case No.

Defendant.

Plaintiff>

v.

R SQUARED CIRCUITS,
INCORPORATED,

PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF
CALIFORNIA, ex rel. DEBORAH O.
RAPHAEL, Director of DEPARTMENT
OF TOXIC SUBSTANCES CONTROL,

KAMALA D. HARRIS
Attorney General of California
MARGARITA PADJLLA
Supervising Deputy Attorney General
KIRK MclNNJS
Deputy Attorney General
State Bar No. 130952

1515 Clay Street, 20th Floor
P.O. Box 70550
Oakland, CA 94612-0550
Telephone: (510) 622·2191
Fax: (510) 622-2270
E·mail: Kirk.Mclnnis@doj.ca.gov

Attorneys for PlaintiffDepartment ofToxic
Substances Control

1. Defendant R Squared Circuits Incorporated ("~ Squared Circuits") at all times relevant to

this Complaint, owned and operated a manufacturing facility (the "Facility") at 120 Blue Ravine,

Folsom, California. R Squared Circuits generated hazardous wastes, including corrosive liquids
I

The People of the State ofCalifornia, ex reI. Deborah O. Raphael> Director of the

Department ofToxic Substances Control (lithe Department") allege the following.
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1 and wastes containing toxic metals at the Facility.

•
2 2. R Squared Circuits violated the Hazardous Waste Control Law, Chapter 6.5 ofDivision

3 20 of the Health and Safety Code ("HWCL") by managing these hazardous wastes in an unsafe

4 manner and without complying with the applicable laws and regulations.

5 3. The Department hereby seeks injunctive relief against and civil penalties from R Squared

6 Circuits for violations of the HWCL and its implementing regulations.

7 PLAINTIFF

8 4. The Department is a public agency of the State of California organized and existing under.

9 and pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 58000 et seq.

10 5.

1I 6.

Deborah O. Raphael is the Director of the Department.

Pursuant to sections 25181 and 25182 of the Health and Safety Code, the Attorney

12 General of the State ofCalifornia is authorized, at the request of the Department, to commence an

13 action in the name of the People for civil penalties and injunctive relief under the HWCL. The

14 Department has asked the Attorney General to apply to this Court for an order imposing

15 injunctive relief and civil penalties for violations of the HWCL.

16 DEFENDANT

17 7.

18 8.

Defendant R Squared Circuits Incorporated is a California corporation.

The Department is informed and believes and thereon alleges that R Squared Circuits is

19 headquartered at Folsom, California and, for all times relevant to this Complaint, was the owner

20 and operator of the Facility.

21 9. R Squared Circuits is a "person, II as defined at Health and Safety Code section 25] 18.

22 Further, R Squared Circuits is an "owner" and "operator," as defined at California Code of

23 Regulations, title 22, section 66260.10.

24 10. When reference is made in this Complaint to any act ofR Squared Circuits, such

25 allegation shall mean that the owners, officers, directors, agents, employees, contractors, or

26 representatives ofR Squared Circuits committed or authorized such acts or recklessly and/or

27 negligently failed and omitted to adequately or properly supervise, control, or direct R Squared

28 Circuits employees, representatives, or agents while engaged in the management, direction,
2
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• •
operation, or control of the affairs ofR Squared Circuits and did so while acting within the course

2 and scope of their employment or agency.

3 JURISDICTION AND VENUE

4 11. This Court has jurisdiction pursuant to California Constitution Article 6, section 10.

5 Venue is proper under Health and Safety Code section 25183 in that the violations principally

6 took place at the Facility in Folsom, Sacramento County, California.

7 STATUTORY AND REGULATORY BACKGROUND

8 12. The State of California has a comprehensive - "cradle to grave" - statutory and regulatory

9 framework for the generation, handling, treatment, transport, and disposal ofhazardous wastes.

10 The HWCL's implementing regulations specify requirements for the tracking, storage, treatment,

11 and disposal ofhazardous waste to protect the public from the risks posed by improper

12 management ofhazardous wastes. (CaL. Code Regs., tit. 22, § 66260.1 et seq.)

13 13. The HWCL is the California analog of the federal Resource Conservation and Recovery

14 Act, 42 U.S.C. section 6901 et seq. ("RCRA"). Pursuant to both state and federal law, the

15 Department administers the HWCL in lieu of federal administration ofRCRA in California. (See

16 Health & Saf. Code § 25101(d); California: Final Authorization of Revisions to State Hazardous

17 Waste Management Program, 66 FR 49118 (September 26,2001).) Federal law prohibits

18 California from imposing "any requirements less stringent than those authorized under [RCRA]."

19 (42 U.S.C. § 6929.)

20 14. State law - the HWCL - has a more inclusive definition of hazardous waste than federal

21 law. Hazardous wastes that are regulated under California law but not federal law are known as'
22 "non-RCRA hazardous wastes." (Health & Saf. Code § 25117.9.)

23 15. The HWCL and RCRA prescribe detailed operating and safety requirements for facilities

24 that treat, store, recycle, or dispose ofhazardous wastes - known either as "TSD facilities" or

25 "hazardous waste management facilities." (See Cal. Code Regs., tit. 22, § 66265.1 et seq.)

26 16. Generators of hazardous waste are subject to the hazardous waste management facility

27 requirements specified in Health and Safety Code section 25100 et seq. and its implementing

28 regulations. R Squared Circuits is subject to these requirements based on its ownership and
3
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operation of the Facility.

2

3 17.

ENFORCEMENT AUTHORITY UNDER THE HWCL

The HWCL authorizes the Court to impose civil penalties under two distinct and

4 alternative provisions. Section 25189 of the Health and Safety Code imposes liability for

5 negligent and intentional violations of, inter alia, the HWCL and its implementing regulations.

6 Pursuant to the provisions of section 25189, civiI penalties ofnot less than $1,000 or more than

7 $25,000 may be imposed for each violation of, inter alia, the HWCL and/or it implementing

8 regulations, or, for continuing violations, for each day that a violation continues. Further,

9 pursuant to section 25189(t), each civil penalty imposed for a separate violation pursuant to

10 section 25189 shall be separate and in addition to anyother civil penalty imposed pursuant to this

11 section or other provision oflaw. Section 25189.2 of the Health and Safety Code imposes

12 penalties for strict liability violations of, inter alia, the HWCL and its implementing regulations.

13 Pursuant to the provision of section 25189.2, civil penalties of up to $25,000 may be imposed for

14 each violation of a separate provision, or for continuing violations, for each day that a violation

15 continues. However, a person may not be held liable for separate civil penalties imposed under

16 sections 25189 and 25189.2 for the same act or failure to act. (Health & Saf. Code §§ 25189(g)

17 and 25189.2(t).)

18 18. Sections 25181 and 25184 of the Health and Safety Code authorize and direct the Court to

19 enjoin any ongoing or potential violation of the HWCL.

20 19. Section 25181 of the Health and Safety Code authorizes the Court to grant "a pennanent

21 or temporary injunction, restraining order, or other order" when the Attorney General, at the

22 request of the Department, applies for an order enjoining violations of the HWCL or ofany rule

23 or requirement issued thereunder, and the Department shows that the person against whom the

24 order is sought has violated or will violate those provisions.

25 20. Health and Safety Code section 25184 provides that in civil actions brought pursuant to

26

27

28

the HWCL in which an injunction or temporary restraining order is sought:

it shall not be necessary to allege or prove at any stage of the proceeding that
irreparable damage will occur should the temporary restraining order, preliminary
injunction, or permanent injunction not be issued; or that the remedy at law is

4
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3 21.

inadequate, and the temporary restraining order, preliminary injunction, or
permanent injunction shall issue without such allegations and without such proof.

THE DEPARTMENT'S INSPECTION OF THE FACILITY

On December 16, 2010, the Department conducted a regulatory inspection of the Facility.

Circuits.

During the inspection, the Department found violation of the HWCL and its implementing

regulations. After this inspection, the Department issued a Summary ofViolations to R Squared

Circuits. On January 28,2011, the Department issued a detailed Inspection Report to R Squared

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

22.

23.

FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION
(Failure to Maintain Operating Records in Violation of

Health and Safety Code section 25200.3(c»

Paragraphs 1 through 2] are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein.

Health and Safety Code section 25200.3(c) requires a generator of hazardous waste to

12 prepare and maintain a written inspection schedule and a log of inspections conducted at a facility

13 it owns and/or operates. Generators ofhazardous waste are further required to maintain written

14 operating instructions and a record of the dates, concentration, amounts, and types of waste

15 treated. Such records must be maintained at the facility where the hazardous waste was generated

16 for a period of five years.

17 24. During the December 16, 2010 inspection, the Department found that R Squared Circuits

18 had failed to maintain proper operating records for its waste water treatment system. The

19 operating records did not have dates, volumes of waste water, and concentration of metals and

20 corrosive liquids treated by the on site treatment unit. R Squared Circuits also did not have a

21 treatment log book. The lack of records concerned serious environmental matters. For example,

22 at the time of the inspection, water was continually flowing into the sewer from a pH adjust tank.

23 However, the concentration of metals going into the pH adjust tank were not available for review,

24 and a comparison to the sewer release requirements could not be made.

25 25. R Squared Circuits violated Health and Safety Code section 25200.3(c) by failing to

26 maintain operating records containing operating records consisting ofdates, volumes, and

27 concentrations of waste water, metals, and corrosive liquids treated for its waste water treatment

28 system at the Facility.

5
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2

3 26.

4 27.

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION
(Failure to Obtain Tank Assessments in Violation
Code ofRegulations, title 2'2, section 66265.192)

Paragraphs 1 through 25 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein.

California Code ofRegulations, title 22, section 66265.192(a) requires that before using a

5 hazardous waste tank system or components, a facility shall obtain a written assessment reviewed

6 and certified by an independent, qualified professional engineer, registered in California, attesting

7 that the tank system or components have sufficient structural integrity, are acceptable for the

8 waste handling activity, and are suitably designed. California Code of Regulations, title 22,

9 section 66265.192(h) requires periodic reassessments of a hazardous waste tank system or

10 components.

11 28. At the time of the December 16,2010 inspection, R Squared Circuits used a hazardous

.12 waste tank system andlor components at the Facility without obtaining the required written

13 assessment andlor reassessments required by California Code of Regulations, title 22, section

14 66265.192(a) and (h) .

15 29. Prior to and continuing after the December] 6, 2010 inspection, R Squared Circuits

16 violated California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66265.192(a) and (h) in that it did not

17 obtain a written assessment and/or reassessments, reviewed and certified by an independent,

18 qualified professional engineer, registered in California, attesting that the hazardous waste tank

19 system and components used at the Facility have sufficient structural integrity, are acceptable for

20 the waste handling activity, and are suitably designed.

21

22

23 30.

24 31.

THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION
(Failure to Develop a Waste Analysis Plan in Violation of
California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66265.13)

Paragraphs 1 through 29 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein.

California Code ofRegulations, title 22, section 66265.13 requires an owner or operator to

25 develop and follow a written waste analysis plan and keep the plan at a facility. Owners and

26 operators are further required to obtain and record detailed analyses ofwastes treat at a facility

27 available for review by the Department.

28 III
6
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32. At the time of the December 16) 2010 inspection, R Squared Circuits had not developed a

2 waste analysis plan for the Facility and did not have waste analysis records for the Facility

3 available for review.

4 33. Prior to and continuing after the December 16, 2010 inspection, R Squared Circuits

5 violated California Code of Regulations, title 22) section 66265.13 in that it did not develop and

6 follow a written waste analysis plan and keep the plan at the Facility. R Squared Circuits further

7 violated California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66265.13 in that it did not have waste

8 analysis records available for review by the Department.

9

10

11 34.

12 35.

FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION
(Failure to Inspect Hazardous Waste Tank Systems in Violation of

California 'Code of Regulations) title 22, section 66265.195)

Paragraphs 1 through 33 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein.

California Code ofRegulations, title 22, section 66265. I 95(a) requires a facility owner or

13 operator to conduct daily inspections of hazardous waste tank systems) data from monitoring and

14 leak detection equipment, and the area immediately surrounding the tank system to detect

15 corrosion, releases of wastes, or signs of releases of wastes (e.g., wet spots, dead vegetation).

16 California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66265.195(c) requires a facility owner or

17 operator to document the required daily inspections in the operating record ofthe facility.

18 36. Prior to and continuing after the December 16, 2010 inspection) R Squared Circuits failed

19 to the conduct the required daily inspections of the hazardous waste tank systems and surrounding

20 areas and failed to document such inspections in the operating record of the Facility.

21 37. R Squared Circuits violated California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66265.195(a)

22 and (c) in that it did not conduct daily inspections of the hazardous waste tank systems and

23 surrounding areas at the Facility and did not document such inspections in the operating record of

24 the Facility.

25 III

26 III

27 III

28 III
7
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1

2

3 38.

4 39.

FIFTH CAUSE OF ACTION
(Failure to Have a Phase I Environmental Assessment in Violation of

Health and Safety Code section 25200.] 4)

Paragraphs 1 through 37 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein.

Health and Safety Code section 25200.14 requires generators ofhazardous waste to file a

5 Phase I Environmental Assessment with the local unified program agency.

6 40. In May 21,2008, the Sacramento County unified program agency cited the Facility for

7 failing to have a Phase I environmental assessment filed with it. As of the Department's

8 December 16, 2010 inspection, this violation had not been corrected.

9 41. Since at least May 21, 2008, R Squared Circuits violated Health and Safety Code section

10

11

25200.14 by failing to file a Phase I Environmental Assessment with the Sacramento County

unified program agency.

12

13

14

]5 42.

16 43.

SIXTII CAUSE OF ACTION
(Unauthorized Treatment of Hazardous Wastes in Violation of

Health and Safety Code section 25201 and
California Code ofRegulations, title 22, sections 67450.1 and 67450.2)

Paragraphs I through 41 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein.

Health and Safety Code section 25201 provides that no owner or operator of a facility may

17 treat hazardous waste unless the owner or operator holds a hazardous waste facilities permit or the

18 treatment is otherwise authorized under the Department's regulations. California Code of

19 Regulations, title 22, section 67450.2 provides that an owner or operator of a waste water

20 treatment unit may be deemed to hold a pennit by rule if it complies with the requirements of

21 California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 67450.) .

22 44 . Prior to and continuing after the December 16,2010 inspection, R Squared Circuits used a

23 hazardous waste treatment unit for the treatment ofwater containing copper, nickel, and

24 corrosives at the Facility, without complying with the requirements ofHealth and Safety Code

25 section 25201 and California Code of Regulations, title 22, sections 67450.] and 67450.2.

26 45. R Squared Circuits violated Health and Safety Code section 25201 and California Code of

27 Regulations, title 22, sections 67450.1 and 67450.2 in that it treated hazardous waste and/or

28 universal waste at the Facility without a hazardous waste facility permit from the Department or

8
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1 complying with the applicablerequirements for permit by rule.

2

3

4 46.

5 47.

SEVENTH CAUSE OF ACTION
(Unauthorized Treatment of HazardousWaste in Violation of

Health and Safety Code section 25201 (a»

Paragraphs 1 through 45 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein.

Pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 25201 (a) an owner or operator may not treat

6 hazardous waste at a facility without permit or authorization from the Department. California

7 Code of Regulations, title 22, section 67450.2 provides that an owner or operator of a waste water

8 treatment unit may be deemed to hold a permit by rule if it complies with the requirements of

9 California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 67450.1.

10 48. During the inspection ofDecember 16,2010, the Departmentdiscovered that R Squared

11 Circuits was electrowinning(a process for separating metals from solutions) hazardous waste

12 water without proper authorization from the Department or complyingwith the requirements

13 California Code ofRegulations, title 22, sections 67450.1 and 67450.2.

14 49. Prior to and continuing after the December 16, 2010 inspection,R Squared Circuits

15 violated Health and Safety Code section 25201(a) and California Code ofRegulations, title 22,

16 sections 67450.1 and 67450.2 in that it electrowinned corrosive acids with metals withoutpermit

17 or authorization.

18

19

20 50.

21 51.

EIGHTH CAUSE OF ACTION
(Unauthorized Storage of Hazardous Waste in Violation of

Health and Safety Code section 25201(a»

Paragraphs 1 through 49 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein.

Pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 25201 (a) an owner or operator may not store

22 hazardous waste at a facility withoutpermit or authorization.

23 52. During the inspection of December 16, 2010, the Department discovered that R Squared

24 Circuits stored electrowinned solution at the Facility for more than 90 days without permit or

25 authorizationas required by Health and Safety Code section 25201(a).

26 53. Prior to and continuingafter the December 16, 2010 inspection, R Squared Circuits

27 violated Health and Safety Code section 25201(a) in that it stored electrowinned solution at the

28 Facility without permit or authorization.
9
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2

3 54.

4 55.

NINTH CAUSE OF ACTION
(Failure to Label Hazardous Waste Tanks in Violation of

California Code ofRegulations, title 22, section 66262.34)

Paragraphs I through 53 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein.

California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66262.34(f) requires that each tank used

5 on site for the accumulation ofhazardous waste must be clearly marked with the words,

6 "Hazardous Waste."

7 56. During the December 16,2010 inspection, the Department observed that seven hazardous

8 waste tanks did not have "Hazardous Waste" labels.

9 57. Prior to and continuing after the December 16, 20.10 inspection, R Squared Circuits

10 violated California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66262.34 in that it failed to have

I] "Hazardous Waste" label on tanks containing hazardous waste.

12

13

14 58.

15 59.

TENTH CAUSE OF ACTION
(Failure to Train Employees in Violation of

California Code ofRegulations, title 22, section 66265.16)

Paragraphs 1 through 57 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein.

California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66265.16 requires that a facility

16 managing hazardous waste have a training plan for its employees and that facility personnel

17 participate in hazardous waste training classes that include certain specified elements and keep

18 records ofthe training received by each employee. Facility personnel must also receive annual

19 updates of this training. Se~tion 66260.10 defines facility personnel to mean all "persons who

20 work, at, or oversee the operations of, a hazardous waste facility, and whose actions or failure to

21 act may result in noncompliance" with the HWCL regulations.

22 60. On December 16, 2010, R Squared Circuits could not produce current or past written

23 training plans for the Facility. In particular, representatives ofR Squared Circuits could not

24 produce training job descriptions of employees at the Facility who handle hazardous waste, a

25 written description oftype and amount of introductory and ongoing training to be received (either

26 on-the-job or formal training), and records ofthis training.

27 61. The Department is informed and believes and thereon alleges that prior to and continuing

28 after the December 16, 2010 inspection, R Squared Circuits did not have written hazardous waste
10

COMPLAINT FOR CrvIL PENALTIES AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF



1 training plans for the Facility and its employees at the Facility responsible for management of

2 hazardous waste had not received required training classes.

3 62. R Squared Circuits violated California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66265.16 in

4 that it did not have written training plans for the Facility and certain Facility employees had not

5 received required training.

6

7

8 63.

9 64.

ELEVENTI-I CAUSE OF ACTION
(Failure to Maintain and Test Emergency Equipment in Violation of

California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66265.33)

Paragraphs 1 through 62 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein.

California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66265.33 requires that hazardous waste

10 facilities maintain and test fire protection equipment, spill control equipment, and

II decontamination equipment to assure its proper operation in time of emergency.

12 65. On December 16, 2010, the Department discovered that wall mounted fire extinguishers at

J3 the Facility were not regularly tested and lacked evidence of inspection dates having been

14 recorded on tags attached to the fire extinguishers. Further, the Facility did not have a designated

15 place for spill control equipment.

16 66. Prior to and continuing after the December 16, 2010 inspection, R Squared Circuits

17

18

19

20

21

violated California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66265.33 in that it failed to operate and

test its fire protection and spill control equipment to assure its proper operation in time of

emergency.

REQUEST FOR RELIEF

The Department requests that the Court grant the relief that follows:

22 1. Enter judgment that Defendant has violated the HWCL as described in the First through

23 Eleventh Causes of Action;

24 2. Enter judgment that Defendant is liable for civil penalties for those violations as

25

26

27

28

authorized by Health and Safety Code section 25189 or, in the alternative, by Health and Safety

Code section 25] 89.2, in an amount according to proof;

11
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other orders enjoining Defendant from illegally managing hazardous waste in California and

requiring Defendant to otherwise comply with the HWCL and the regulations adopted thereunder;

1

2

3

3. Enter temporary restraining orders, preliminary injunctions, pennanent injunctions, or

Grant the Department its costs of suit herein; and

Grant such other and further relief as the court deems just and proper.

Respectfully Submitted,

KAMALA D. HARRIS
Attorney General of California
MARGARITA PADILLA
Supervising Deputy Attorney General

KJRK MC)l\1NJS
Deputy Attorney General
Attorneysfor PlaintiffDepartment ofToxic
Substances Control

Dated: September 16, 2013
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